
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Commission Meeting 
October 25, 2022, 4:00 pm  

 
 

Location: 
Stanislaus County Office of Education 

Chatom Room 
1100 H Street 

Modesto, CA 95354 
 



 

Commission Meeting Notice 
Tuesday, October 25, 2022, 4:00 PM 

Stanislaus County Office of Education, Chatom Room 
1100 H Street, Modesto, CA  95354 

 
The Stanislaus County Children and Families Commission welcomes you to its meetings which are 
ordinarily held on the fourth Tuesday of most months. Your interest is encouraged and 
appreciated. The agenda is divided into multiple sections including: 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: Matters under the jurisdiction of the Commission, and not on the 
posted agenda, may be addressed by the general public either at the beginning of the 
regular agenda and any off-agenda matters before the Commission for consideration. 
However, California law prohibits the Commission from taking action on any matter which is not 
on the posted agenda unless it is determined to be an emergency by the Commission.  Any 
member of the public wishing to address the Commission during the “Public Comment” period 
shall be permitted to be heard once for up to 5 minutes. If you would like to provide a written 
comment, please email your comment to First5Stan@stancounty.com by 4:00 p.m. on Monday, 
the day before the meeting, and include the Agenda Item Number or Public Comment Period in 
the subject line of the email.  Your written comment will be distributed to the Commission and 
kept on file as part of the official record of the Commission meeting.    
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: These matters include routine financial and administrative actions. All 
items on the consent calendar will be voted on as a single action at the beginning of the 
meeting under the section titled “Consent Calendar” without discussion. If you wish to discuss a 
consent item, please notify Commission staff prior to the beginning of the meeting or you may 
speak about the item during the Public Comment Period.  
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS: These items will be individually discussed with opportunity for public 
comment. 
  
PUBLIC HEARINGS: These items may be required by legislation or code and are opportunities 
to gather public feedback.  
 
ANY MEMBER OF THE AUDIENCE DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON A MATTER ON 
THE AGENDA: Please raise your hand or step to the podium when the Commission Chairperson 
announces public comment will be received on that specific agenda item. In order that 
interested parties have an opportunity to speak, any person addressing the Commission will be 
limited to a maximum of 5 minutes unless the Chairperson of the Commission sets a different 
period of time. 

 
MEMBERS: 

 
 

Ignacio Cantu, Jr. 
Community Representative 

 
 

Vito Chiesa 
County Supervisor 

 
 

David Cooper 
Chair 

Community Representative 
 
 

Daniel Diep, M.D. 
Community Representative 

 
 

Christine Huber 
Community Services Agency 

 
 

Tony Jordan 
School Representative 

 
 

Mary Ann Lilly-Tengowski 
Vice Chair 

Health Services Agency 
 
 

Nelly Paredes-Walsborn, Ph.D. 
Community Representative 

 
 

Julie Vaishampayan, M.D. 
Public Health Officer 

 
 

************** 
 

 
 

mailto:edwardsk@stancounty.com


 

Commission Meeting Notice 
Tuesday, October 25, 2022, 4:00 PM 

Stanislaus County Office of Education, Chatom Room 
1100 H Street, Modesto, CA  95354 

 
COMMISSION AGENDAS AND MINUTES: Commission agendas, minutes, and copies of 
items to be considered by the Children and Families Commission, are typically posted on the 
Internet on Friday afternoons preceding a Tuesday meeting at the following website: 
www.first5stan.org.  
 
Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Commission after distribution 
of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the Commission office at 930 
15th Street, Modesto, CA during normal business hours.  Such documents are also available 
online, subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting, at the following 
website: www.first5stan.org. 
 
NOTICE REGARDING NON-ENGLISH SPEAKERS:  Stanislaus County Children & Families 
Commission meetings are conducted in English and translation to other languages is not 
provided unless the Commission is notified 72 hours in advance that an interpreter is 
necessary.  Please contact Administration at (209) 558-6218 should you need a translator 
for this meeting. 
 
Las juntas de la Comisión para Niños y Familias son dirigidas en Ingles y no hay traducción 
disponible a menos que la Comisión sea notificada con 72 horas por avanzado. Si necesita 
traducción, por favor contacte a la Comisión al (209) 558-6218. (Por favor tome nota, el 
mensaje es en Ingles, pero se le asistirá en Español cuando lo pida.) 
 
REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the 
Commission at (209) 558-6218. Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 
Commission to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.  
 
RECUSALS:  California Government Code Section 87100 states that “no public official at 
any level of state or local government may make, participate in making or in any way use 
or attempt to use his/her official position to influence governmental decision in which he/she 
knows or has reason to know he/she has a disqualifying conflict of interest.” Likewise, 
California Government Code section 1090 provides that certain government officials and 
employees “…shall not be financially interested in any contract made by them in their 
official capacity.” 
 
These sections of law permit the Stanislaus County Children and Families Commission to 
execute contracts so long as the Commissioner(s) with the conflict recuses himself or herself 
from making, participating in making, or in any way attempting to use his or her official 
position to influence a decision on the contract.  

 
 

 
MEMBERS: 

 
 

Ignacio Cantu, Jr. 
Community Representative 

 
 

Vito Chiesa 
County Supervisor 

 
 

David Cooper 
Chair 

Community Representative 
 
 

Daniel Diep, M.D. 
Community Representative 

 
 

Christine Huber 
Community Services Agency 

 
 

Tony Jordan 
School Representative 

 
 

Mary Ann Lilly-Tengowski 
Vice Chair 

Health Services Agency 
 
 

Nelly Paredes-Walsborn, Ph.D. 
Community Representative 

 
 

Julie Vaishampayan, M.D. 
Public Health Officer 

 
 

************** 
 

 

http://www.first5stan.org/
http://www.first5stan.org/


  

 
 
 
 

 
 
COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 

Tuesday, October 25, 2022, 4:00 PM 
Stanislaus County Office of Education – Chatom Room 

1100 H Street, Modesto, CA 
 

1. Welcome & Introductions 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Announcement of Recusals1 
 
4. Presentation 
 
5. Public Comment Period (Limit of 5 minutes per person) 
 
6. Consent Calendar 

A. Miscellaneous 
1. Approval of the August 23, 2022, Commission Meeting Minutes 
2. Approval of the September 15, 2022, Commission Meeting Minutes 
3. Approval of the October 10, 2022, Administrative Committee Meeting Minutes  

a. 4th Quarter Financial Report Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
b. Result Area Contract Report as of June 30, 2022 

4. Approval of the October 13, 2022, Operations Committee Meeting Minutes 
 

7. Discussion Items 
A. Approval to Appoint an Executive Director to First 5 Stanislaus 

 
8. Public Hearings 

A. Public Hearing to Consider the Acceptance of the First 5 Stanislaus 2021-2022 Audit Report  
B. Public Hearing on the 2021-2022 Local Annual Report and Authorization for Staff to Submit the 2021-

2022 Local Annual Report to First 5 California 
 

9. Correspondence 
 

10. Commissioner Reports 
 

11. Staff Reports  
A. Program Staff Report 

 
12. Adjournment  

 
 

 
1 Commissioners may publicly announce the item(s) or recommendation(s) from which he/she will recuse himself/herself due to an actual 
or perceived conflict of interest.  The Commissioner will excuse himself or herself from the meeting and leave the meeting when the specific 
agenda item comes up for discussion and voting.  



++0[74:09 PM 

STANISLAUS COUNTY 
CHILDREN & FAMILIES COMMISSION 

MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, August 23, 2022 

Stanislaus County Office of Education – Boardroom 
1100 H Street, Modesto, CA 

Commissioners Present: Vito Chiesa, David Cooper (Chair), Christine Huber, 
Mary Ann Lilly-Tengowski (Vice Chair), Nelly Paredes-Walsborn 

Commissioners Absent:   Ignacio Cantu, Jr., Dr. Daniel Diep, Dr. Julie Vaishampayan 

Staff Present:  Stephanie Loomis, Victoria Ven, Pamela Thompson-Ryan, 
Angela Cobb 

1. Chair Cooper called the meeting to order at 4:02 p.m. Attendees introduced
themselves.

2. Pledge of Allegiance was conducted.

3. Announcement of Commissioner Recusals – None

4. The recognition of past Commissioner Vicki Bauman was rescheduled.

5. Public Comment Period (Limit of 5 minutes per person) – None

6. Consent Calendar
Lilly-Tengowski/Chiesa (5,0) approved the Consent Calendar.
A. Miscellaneous

1. Approval of the May 24, 2022, Commission Meeting Minutes
2. Approval of the June 17, 2022, Commission Meeting Minutes
3. Approval of the August 8, 2022, Administrative Committee Meeting

Minutes
4. Approval of the August 11, 2022, Operations Committee Meeting Minutes
5. Approval of the August 17, 2022, Executive Committee Meeting Minutes

a. 3rd Quarter Financial Report Fiscal Year 2021-2022
b. Result Area Contract Report as of May 31, 2022

6. Approval to Accept and Distribute $70,000 of Emergency Funds from
Sunlight Giving

7. Discussion
A. Chiesa/Paredes-Walsborn (5,0) approved the election of David Cooper as

Commission Chair and Mary Ann Lily-Tengowski as Vice-Chair for 2022-2023. (The



Vice-Chair will automatically become Chair on September 1, 2023, for a one-year 
term.) 

B. Paredes-Walsborn/Huber (5,0) authorized the Commission Chair to negotiate and
execute a Contract Employee Agreement with Victoria Ven-Wilcox for Project
Coordination for the period of August 31, 2022 – December 31, 2022; authorized
staff to make the necessary technical and budget adjustments associated with the
agreement.

C. Chiesa/Lilly-Tengowski (5,0) approved the amendments to the Commission By-
Laws.

8. Public Hearings – None

9. Correspondence – None

10. Commissioner Reports – None

11. Staff Reports
A. Executive Director Report – Loomis reported the First 5 Association hired a new 

Executive Director, Avo Makdessian, who will begin his work on August 29. He is 
currently Vice President of Community Partnerships and Learning for the Silicon 
Valley Community Foundation; highlighted First 5’s online data system is live, and 
partners have received one-on-one training ahead of submitting their first round of 
reports; advised annual partner orientation were held jointly with CSA for our DR 
FRCs and stand-alone contracts to start off the fiscal year; shared the August ECE 
was held August 20 and over 100 people logged on to the full-day virtual conference 
which included keynote speaker, Lisa Murphy; staff are coordinating parenting 
education training for partners again (Nurturing Parenting, Abriendo Puertas, 
Parent Cafes, Creative Curriculum); shared a materials distribution was conducted 
for First 5 PlanetBaby! sites where 11,500 diapers, 1,660 books, and 1,500 COVID 
test kits were distributed on August 15; staff have started working on the Report to 
the Community for 2022 and will be highlighting Franklin Healthy Start; gave an 
update on the outside audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022 and recognized 
it’s a team effort with all staff supporting the process; noted compliance notification 
was received in July from the State Controller for  the audit ending June 30, 2021.

12. The Commission meeting adjourned at 4:32 p.m.



1 | P a g e

++0[74:09 PM 

STANISLAUS COUNTY 
CHILDREN & FAMILIES COMMISSION 
SPECIAL CLOSED MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, September 15, 2022 
10th Street Place – Suite 1013 
1010 10th Street, Modesto, CA

Commissioners Present: David Cooper (Chair), Christine Huber 
Mary Ann Lilly-Tengowski (Vice Chair), Nelly Paredes-Walsborn, 

Commissioners Absent:   Ignacio Cantu, Jr., Vito Chiesa, Dr. Daniel Diep, Tony Jordan, 
Dr. Julie Vaishampayan 

Staff Present:  Angela Cobb, Commission Counsel 

1. Chair Cooper called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m.

2. Discussion: Public Employee Appointment, Title: Executive Director, Government Code:
54957(b) - No Reportable Action.

3. The Commission meeting adjourned at 12:50 p.m.



1 

Administrative/Financial Committee Minutes 
Monday, October 10, 2022 

Commissioners Present:  Nelly Paredes-Walsborn 

Commissioners Absent:   Christine Huber, Tony, Jordan, 
Mary Ann Lilly-Tengowski 

Staff Present:                     Veronica Ascencio, Victoria Ven-Wilcox 

Meeting was called to order at 12:10 p.m.  

1. 4th Quarter Financial Report Fiscal Year 2021-2022 – Ascencio presented the 
report, and no action was taken.

2. Result Area Contract Report as of June 30, 2022 – Ascencio presented the 
report, and no action was taken.

3. 2023 Meeting Dates for Committees and Commission – Ascencio shared 
proposed dates for 2023 Committees and Commission meetings will 
be presented at the October Commission Meeting, and no action was taken.

4. 2021-2022 Annual Audit Report – Ascencio presented information on the 
Annual Audit Report process to the Committee members, and no action was 
taken.

5. 2021-2022 Local Annual Report – Ascencio presented information on the 
report to the Committee members, and no action was taken.

6. Draft Agenda for October 25, 2022, Commission Meeting – Ascencio 
presented the draft agenda, and no action was taken.

7. Executive Director Report – No Executive Report

8. Adjournment at 12:50 p.m.

930 15th Street 
Modesto, CA 95354 
Office: 209.558.6218   Fax: 209.558.6225 

MEMBERS: 

Ignacio Cantu, Jr. 
Community Representative 

Vito Chiesa 
County Supervisor 

David Cooper 
 Chair 

Community Representative 

Daniel Diep, M.D. 
Community Representative 

Christine Huber 
Community Services Agency 

Tony Jordan 
School Representative 

Mary Ann Lilly-Tengowski 
Vice Chair 

Health Services Agency 

Nelly Paredes-Walsborn, Ph.D. 
Community Representative 

Julie Vaishampayan, M.D. 
Public Health Officer 

************** 



2022 2021 FY 21/22 Adopted 
Budget

FY 21/22 
Legal  

Budget

FY 21/22 
Actual

Remaining FY 
Budget

% Actual 
to Budget

REVENUE
Interest (544,315)$              (51,095)$  80,000$  80,000$        (490,267)$      570,267$           -613%
Tobacco Tax (Prop 10) ( incl. SMIF, Backfill) 1,429,289$            1,582,706$  4,707,423$            4,707,423$   5,035,148$    (327,725)$          107%
Other - State Revenue (HVG, IMPACT) 55,233$  11,990$  48,325$  48,325$        -$  
Other - Grants, Misc 108,267$  177,775$  100,000$  220,000$      283,616$       111,733$           0%

   TOTAL REVENUE 1,048,475$            1,721,376$  4,935,748$            5,055,748$   4,828,497$    354,275$           98%

EXPENDITURES
Program

Contracts/Programs* 612,030$  2,654,708$  2,843,398$            2,852,203$   2,237,429$    614,774$           78%
Contracts-Prior Year (Payments/Adjsutments) 163$  -$  -$  -$  -$  
Contract Adjustments (TBD) -$  -$  500,000$  500,000$      -$  500,000$           0%
Salaries & Benefits 56,194$  84,785$  262,385$  262,385$      262,600$       (215)$  100%
Services & Supplies 112,028$  171,266$  620,605$  757,031$      315,874$       441,157$           42%

Total Expenditures - Program 780,252$               2,910,921$  4,226,387$  4,371,618$   2,815,903$    1,555,715$        64%

Evaluation
Salaries & Benefits 5$  (13)$  14,184$  14,184$        4,954$           9,230$  35%
Services & Supplies 521$  2,435$  27,468$  27,468$        2,210$           25,258$             8%

Total Expenditures - Evaluation 525$  2,422$  41,651$  41,652$        7,164$           34,488$             17%

Administration
Salaries & Benefits 172,090$  92,392$  432,580$  432,580$      449,331$       (16,751)$            104%
Services & Supplies (16,286)$  (2,798)$  195,007$  208,699$      59,021$         149,678$           28%

Total Expenditures - Administration 155,804$               89,594$  627,588$               641,279$      508,352$       132,927$           79%

   TOTAL EXPENDITURES 936,581$               3,002,937$  4,895,626$            5,054,549$   3,331,419$    1,723,131$        66%

Beginning Fund Balance 9,352,488$            10,061,750$  

Ending Fund Balance 9,392,610$            11,558,829$  

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) TO FUND BALANCE 40,122$  1,497,078$    

* Contracts/Program actuals includes all result area costs, including ECE & cost allocations Administrative Cost Rate %: 10%
Revised

First 5 Stanislaus
Fiscal Year 2021-2022

4th Quarter Financial Report

Three Months Ended
 June 30 YTD



Budget
Actual 

Expenditures
Remaining 

Budget
% Actual 
to Budget

United Way (211 Project) 20,000$             20,000$  -$  100%
Family Resource Centers:

Center for Human Svcs (Ceres FRC) 165,769$           163,006$  2,763$ 98%
Sierra Vista Children and Fam. Svcs (Hughson FRC) 149,952$           149,449$  503$ 100%
Sierra Vista Children and Fam. Svcs (N. Modesto/Salida FRC) 225,406$           220,879$  4,527$ 98%
Center for Human Svcs (Oakdale/Riverbank FRC) 163,610$           163,283$  327$ 100%
Parent Resource Center (Central Modesto FRC) 342,113$           314,857$  27,256$             92%
Aspiranet (Turlock FRC) 174,872$           174,719$  153$ 100%
Center for Human Svcs (Westside FRC) 278,273$           281,190$  (2,917)$              101%

Sierra Vista Children and Fam. Svcs (The Bridge) 150,000$           150,000$  -$  100%
West Modesto Community Collab. (PlanetBaby! Site) 25,920$             24,626$  1,294$ 95%
Modesto City Schools (Parent Advocacy Pilot) 2,076$  (2,076)$              
SCOE (Healthy Start) 498,398$           498,398$  -$  100%

Total Area 1: 2,194,313$   2,162,483$          31,830$        99%

Early Care and Education Conference 12,000$             2,313.99$  9,686$ 19%
Total Area 2: 12,000$        2,314$  9,686$          19%

Stanislaus Community Foundation (Cradle to Career) 21,346$             8,805$  12,542$             41%
Tides Center (Abriendo Purertas) 54,417$             54,417.00$  -$  100%
Parent Resource Center (PlanetBaby! Technical Assistance) 12,500$             7,610.50$  4,890$ 61%
Nancy Fisher (High Risk Maternal Systems Impr. Svcs) 10,000$             1,800.00$  8,200$ 18%

Total Area 4: 98,263$        72,632$               25,631$        74%
Result Area Total 2,304,576$   2,237,429$          67,148$        

ADJUSTED PROGRAM CONTRACT 
EXPENDITURES* 2,292,576$   2,235,115$          57,462$        97%

2,290,297$   

* Adjusted Program Contract Expenditures does not include ECE Conference Costs

System Building
RESULT AREA 4: Improved Systems of Care

CBO/non-profit, Other Private/For Profit

First 5 Stanislaus
Result Area Contract Report

RESULT AREA 1: Improved Family Functioning (Family Support, Education, and Services)

YTD as of 6/30/22

General Family Support

Quality Early Learning Support
RESULT AREA 2: Improved Child Development (Child Development Services)

211/Family Resource Centers; CBO - Non-Profit; County Office of Ed-School District

First 5 County Commission



2 

Operations Committee Minutes 
Thursday, October 13, 2022 

Commissioners Present:  Ignacio Cantu, Jr., Dr. Daniel Diep, Tony Jordan 

Commissioners Absent:   David Cooper, Dr. Julie Vaishampayan  

Staff Present:                     Veronica Ascencio, Stephanie Loomis 

Meeting was called to order at 12:03 p.m.  

1. 4th Quarter Financial Report Fiscal Year 2021-2022 – Ascencio presented the 
report, and no action was taken.

2. Result Area Contract Report as of June 30, 2022 – Ascencio presented the 
report, and no action was taken.

3. 2023 Meeting Dates for Committees and Commission – Loomis shared 
proposed dates for 2023 Committees and Commission meetings will 
be presented at the October Commission Meeting. Commissioner Diep 
asked if the Commission meetings could be moved to another day due to an 
existing conflict he has on Tuesday afternoons. Loomis indicated this 
could be discussed at the Executive Committee to determine if this was 
possible.

4. 2021-2022 Annual Audit Report – Ascencio presented information on the 
Annual Audit Report process to the Committee members, and no action was 
taken.

5. 2021-2022 Local Annual Report – Loomis presented information on the 
report to the Committee members, and no action was taken.

6. Draft Agenda for October 25, 2022, Commission Meeting – Loomis presented 
the draft agenda, and no action was taken.

7. Executive Director Report – Loomis shared staff had received a mockup for 
the 2022 Report to Community and will share when the final product is up on 
the First 5 website; shared First 5 California is expected to release an RFA 
for IMPACT Legacy in February 2023 and funding is anticipated to be 
allocated by regions versus individual counties like in prior grants; noted staff 
have received a save the date for the 2023 Child Health, Education and Care 
Summit hosted by First 5 California. The Summit will be March 13-15, 2023 
at the Oakland Marriot City Center; highlighted First 5 California’s new 
Dragon Song campaign, focused on supporting young children’s mental 
health, was recent launched and marketing is now out in Stanislaus County;

930 15th Street 
Modesto, CA 95354 
Office: 209.558.6218   Fax: 209.558.6225 

MEMBERS: 

Ignacio Cantu, Jr. 
Community Representative 

Vito Chiesa 
County Supervisor 

David Cooper 
 Chair 

Community Representative 

Daniel Diep, M.D. 
Community Representative 

Christine Huber 
Community Services Agency 

Tony Jordan 
School Representative 

Mary Ann Lilly-Tengowski 
Vice Chair 

Health Services Agency 

Nelly Paredes-Walsborn, Ph.D. 
Community Representative 

Julie Vaishampayan, M.D. 
Public Health Officer 

************** 



Page 2 of 2 

noted the next ECE conference will be in-person on November 19 and will 
offer all presentations in English and Spanish. 

8. Adjournment at 1:26 p.m.



COMMITTEE ROUTING 
 

Administrative/Finance  
Operations  
Executive   

 
 

 
ACTION AGENDA SUMMARY 

 

AGENDA DATE:   October 25, 2022          COMMISSION AGENDA#:   7.A.               
 

SUBJECT:  
Approval to Appoint an Executive Director to First 5 Stanislaus 
 

BACKGROUND: 
The Executive Director position of First 5 Stanislaus has been vacant since May 13, 2022, with the retirement of 
the previous Executive Director, David Jones.  The Commission, in coordination with the Stanislaus County Human 
Resources Division, conducted an open recruitment to identify potential candidates for the position. On 
September 15, 2022, the Commission interviewed potential candidates for the Executive Director position, and 
upon conclusion of the interviews, directed staff to make a conditional offer of employment to Shameram Karim.  
The offer was subject to: (1) reaching agreement with the candidate regarding salary and benefits within 
parameters set by the Commission, and a start date and (2) satisfactory completion of a background check.  The 
two contingencies were resolved satisfactorily in early October. 

 

The Commission's October 25, 2022, meeting is the Commission's first regular meeting after completion of the 
contingencies for the Commission to formally appoint Dr. Karim as the Executive Director of First 5 Stanislaus.  
Although the Commission, First 5 staff, and partners are aware that Shameram Karim was selected as the 
Executive Director effective October 24, 2022, this recommended action formally makes that appointment 
retroactive to October 24, 2022.   
 
The Administrative and Finance Committee and the Operations Committee were updated on this item at their 
respective meetings on October 10th and October 13th. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
1. Appoint Shameram Karim to serve as the Executive Director retroactively effective to October 24, 

2022, and approve the starting salary at $144,643 per year, plus department head benefits as set 
forth in the attached benefit summary. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Approval of this agenda item has no budget impact since funding for the Executive Director position is already 
budgeted. 
 

COMMISSION ACTION:       
 

On motion of Commissioner     ; Seconded by Commissioner        
and approved by the following vote: 
Ayes: Commissioner(s):             
Noes: Commissioner(s):             
Excused or Absent Commissioner(s):           
Abstaining: Commissioner(s):             
1)   Approved as recommended. 
2)   Denied. 
3)   Approved as amended. 
 
 



Motion: 

Attest: 
 Stephanie Loomis – Staff Services Coordinator 



 
STANISLAUS COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT HEADS 

2022 BENEFIT SUMMARY 
Revised 01/2022 

 

1010 10TH STREET, STE. 6800, MODESTO, CA 95354 
POST OFFICE BOX 3404, MODESTO, CA 95353 

PHONE: 209.525.6333, FAX: 209.558.4423 
STANCOUNTY.COM 

 

 
TYPE SEMI-MONTHLY PREMIUMS DESCRIPTION SUBJECT TO TAXES 
 
MEDICAL INSURANCE 
 
HEALTH PARTNERS OF 
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA 
(HPNC) 
 
OR 
 
UNITED HEALTHCARE 
(UHC) 
 
Medical Plan Carrier is based on 
employee’s zip code.  See 
Employee Benefit Guide for zip 
code list. 

 
HDHP WITH HSA 
Employee Only ............................... $326.50 
Employee+1.................................... $653.50 
Family ............................................. $882.00 
 
EPO 
Employee Only ............................... $390.50 
Employee + 1 ................................. $781.00 
Family .......................................... $1,054.50 
 
 
Health Savings Account (HSA)  
funded by the County: 

$1,350 single per year. 
$2,300 family per year. 

 
$75.00 semi-monthly medical waive credit 
provided with proof of other coverage. 

 
Employee/dependent HDHP coverage paid at 
95%. 
 
Employee/dependent EPO coverage paid at 
80%. 
 
Employees working a benefitted percentage 
schedule will have a reduced employer 
contribution toward health insurance benefits. 

30-34 hours/week = 75% of the employer 
contribution. 
35-39 hours/week = 90% of the employer 
contribution. 

 
Employee share will be deducted semi-monthly 
before tax from paycheck. 

 
Premium 
Federal/State—No 
FICA/Medicare—No 
Retirement Contributable—No 
 
Waive 
Federal/State—Yes 
FICA/Medicare—Yes 
Retirement Contributable— 
Dependent on Retirement Tier 
 

 
DENTAL INSURANCE 
 
DELTA DENTAL 

 
CORE PLAN 
Employee Only ................................. $17.00 
Employee + 1 ................................... $34.00 
Family ............................................... $59.00 
 
BUYUP PLAN 
Employee Only ................................. $28.50 
Employee + 1 ................................... $56.50 
Family ............................................... $97.50 
 

 
Employee/dependent Dental coverage paid at 
80% of the Core Plan. 
 
Employees working a benefitted percentage 
schedule will have a reduced contribution toward 
health insurance benefits. 
 
Employee share will be deducted semi-monthly 
before tax from paycheck. 

 
Premium 
Federal/State—No 
FICA/Medicare—No 
Retirement Contributable—No 
 

 
VISION INSURANCE 
 
VSP 

 
CHOICE PLAN 
Employee Only ................................... $3.75 
Employee + 1 ..................................... $7.50 
Family ............................................... $10.00 
 

 
Employee/dependent Vision coverage paid at 
80%. 
 
Employees working a benefitted percentage 
schedule will have a reduced contribution toward 
health insurance benefits. 
 
Employee share will be deducted semi-monthly 
before tax from paycheck. 

 
Premium 
Federal/State—No 
FICA/Medicare—No 
Retirement Contributable—No 
 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL EMPLOYEE 
AND SPOUSAL TERM AD&D 
LIFE INSURANCE AND CHILD 
TERM LIFE INSURANCE 
 
VOYA/RELIASTAR 
 
 
 

 
Opt. 1 - $  20,000.......... $  2.10 EE and SP 
Opt. 2 - $  30,000.......... $  3.15 EE and SP 
Opt. 3 - $  50,000.......... $  5.25 EE Only 
Opt. 4 - $100,000.......... $10.50 EE Only 
Opt. 5 - $150,000.......... $15.75 EE Only 
Opt. 6 - $200,000.......... $21.00 EE Only 
Opt. 7 - $250,000.......... $26.25 EE Only 
Opt. 8 - $300,000.......... $31.50 EE Only 
 
Opt. 1 - $  10,000.......... $  1.25 CH Only 

 
This is a voluntary benefit offered to employees 
with two options available for spouses.  
 
All premiums will be deducted semi-monthly after 
tax from paycheck.  

 
Premium 
Federal/State—Yes 
FICA/Medicare—Yes 
Retirement Contributable—No 

 
BASIC TERM AD&D  
LIFE INSURANCE  
 
VOYA/RELIASTAR 

 
Regular Employee Basic Term Life 
$30,000 - $1.64. 

 
County pays 100% of Basic Term Life and 
AD&D insurance premiums.  

 
Premium 
Federal/State—No 
FICA/Medicare—No 
Retirement Contributable—No 
 

 
ACCIDENT AND CRITICAL 
ILLNESS INSURANCE 
 
VOYA/RELIASTAR 

 
See Employee Benefit Guide for Rates. 

 
These are voluntary benefits offered to 
employees and their dependents.  
 
All premiums will be deducted semi-monthly after 
tax from paycheck. 

 
Premium 
Federal/State—Yes 
FICA/Medicare—Yes 
Retirement Contributable—No 

 



 
STANISLAUS COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT HEADS 

2022 BENEFIT SUMMARY 
Revised 01/2022 

 

1010 10TH STREET, STE. 6800, MODESTO, CA 95354 
POST OFFICE BOX 3404, MODESTO, CA 95353 

PHONE: 209.525.6333, FAX: 209.558.4423 
STANCOUNTY.COM 

 

TYPE BIWEEKLY DESCRIPTION SUBJECT TO TAXES 
VACATION ACCRUAL 4.62 hours biweekly first year. 

6.16 hours biweekly beginning year 2 thru 20. 
7.70 hours biweekly beginning year 21. 
Prorated if less than 80 hours base.   

120 hours—3 weeks annually. 
160 hours—4 weeks annually. 
200 hours—5 weeks annually. 
Maximum of 800 hours plus one year accruals 
or their actual balance on 12/15/95 if more than 
800 hours. 

Taxed when time is used. 
Federal/State—Yes 
FICA/Medicare—Yes 
Retirement Contributable—Yes 
 

VACATION FLOATS 1.24 hours biweekly - posted as part of per 
pay period vacation accrual.  

32 hours total annually - additional vacation 
included in biweekly accruals.  

Taxed when time is used. 
Federal/State—Yes 
FICA/Medicare—Yes 
Retirement Contributable—Yes 

ANNUAL VACATION CASH 
OUT ALLOWANCE 

 Twice in any 12-month period (total up to 
individual annual vacation accrual rate). 
Contingent upon departmental budget/approval. 

Federal/State—Yes 
FICA/Medicare—Yes 
Retirement Contributable—
Dependent on Retirement Tier 

TERM VACATION CASH OUT  Balance of hours paid at termination. Federal/State—Yes 
FICA/Medicare—Yes 
Retirement Contributable—No 

MANAGEMENT LEAVE  56 hours per year, no carry over, no cash out.  
Use it or lose it. Prorated for new Department 
Head. 

Federal/State—Yes 
FICA/Medicare—Yes 
Retirement Contributable—Yes 

SICK LEAVE ACCRUAL 3.7 hours per pay period. 
 
Prorated if less than 80 hours base. 

96.20 hours annually. Taxed when time is used. 
Federal/State—Yes 
FICA/Medicare—Yes 
Retirement Contributable—Yes 

TERM SICK LEAVE CASH OUT  0% - Less than one year of service. 
25% - Over one year of service. 
75% - Upon retirement (service or disability) or 
death up to 600 hours or individual maximum set 
in 11/9/94 and 1/18/95.  
Employees receive hour for hour retirement 
service credit for any sick leave above 600 hours 
or their personal maximum amount. 

Federal/State—Yes 
FICA/Medicare—Yes 
Retirement Contributable—No 
 

SICK LEAVE CONVERSION 
 

 Convert sick leave to vacation time at open 
enrollment.  Rate = 40%.  Remaining sick leave 
balance = 500 hours. 

Taxed when time is used. 
Federal/State—Yes 
FICA/Medicare—Yes 
Retirement Contributable—Yes 

DEFERRED COMPENSATION 
 

2.0% of base wages. County pays 2.0% of employee’s base wages to 
designated deferred compensation plan. 

Federal/State—No 
FICA/Medicare—No 
Retirement Contributable—
Dependent on Retirement Tier 

PROFESSIONAL 
DEVELOPMENT 
 

$1,200 annually (fiscal year). 
 

Reimbursement allowance to assist eligible 
employees in achieving professional and 
educational growth related to their professional 
position. The allowance covers work-related 
expenditures such as classes and seminars, 
professional memberships, registration fees, 
educational materials, tools, and equipment.  
See policy for further details. 

Reimbursement can be either: 
Taxable 
Federal/State—Yes 
FICA/Medicare—Yes 
Retirement Contributable—No 
Non-Taxable 
Federal/State—No 
FICA/Medicare—No 
Retirement Contributable—No 

SHORT TERM DISABILITY  Waiting period—7 days.  On day 8 receive 50% 
biweekly salary for eleven months when 
completely disabled.   

Federal/State—Yes 
FICA/Medicare—Yes 
Retirement Contributable—Yes 

LONG TERM DISABILITY  60% to a maximum of $6,000 per month.  Waiting 
period—365 days.  

Premium 
Federal/State—No 
FICA/Medicare—Yes 
Retirement Contributable—No 

CAR ALLOWANCE $184.62 per pay period, plus mileage.   $4,800 annually. Federal/State—Yes 
FICA/Medicare—Yes 
Retirement Contributable—
Dependent on Retirement Tier 

MOVING ALLOWANCE Recruited from out-of-County up to $7,500.  
Paid by the Department. 

See Personnel Policy Tab 12. Federal/State—Yes 
FICA/Medicare—Yes 
Retirement Contributable—No 

 



COMMITTEE ROUTING 

Administrative/Finance 
Operations 
Executive  

ACTION AGENDA SUMMARY 

AGENDA DATE:  October 25, 2022 COMMISSION AGENDA #: 8.A. (PUBLIC HEARING) 

SUBJECT:   
Public Hearing to Consider the Acceptance of the First 5 Stanislaus 2021-2022 Audit Report 

BACKGROUND: 
Following its passage by voters in 1998, the provisions of Proposition 10 were codified into California State Law as 
Sections 130100 – 130155 of the California Health and Safety Code.  Section 130150 of the California Health and 
Safety Code requires that local Children and Families Commissions complete an annual audit each year, conduct a 
public hearing on the audit, and submit the audit to the State by November 1st.   

First 5 Stanislaus staff continue to maintain strong accounting and fiscal practices with a commitment to 
responsibility for taxpayer funds. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not 
absolute, assurance that financial statements are free of material misstatements. First 5 Stanislaus staff 
undertake fiscal accountability and monitoring actions throughout the year to help monitor compliance with all 
appropriate laws and regulations.  The objective of these controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions as 
established in State law and code.   

An outside audit is a major undertaking that requires a significant amount of time on the part of both staff and 
the outside auditor. This audit is also the opportunity for staff to learn and identify potential opportunities for 
improvement. If findings or recommendations were to occur as part of the annual audit process, staff would take 
appropriate action to strengthen fiscal practices for the benefit of taxpayers and public accountability.   

The Commission is contracted with Hudson Henderson & Company, Inc., (Fresno, CA) to perform the 2021-2022 
annual audit. The purpose of the audit report is to form an opinion on the financial statements of First 5 
Stanislaus as to whether they present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities and major fund of the Commission as of June 30, 2022, the respective changes in financial 
position and the respective budgetary comparison statement for the governmental fund for the year then ended, 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.   

The audit is conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  

The audit, which has been included with the Commission’s agenda packet, contains no findings or 
recommendations.  The audit report includes items such as the Independent Auditor’s Report, Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), Financial Statements, and other materials. At the Commission’s October 25, 
2022, meeting a public hearing will be held on the audit. 

An electronic copy of the audit can be found on the First 5 Stanislaus website under “Reports by Year” 
http://first5stan.org/all_reports.shtm. 

The Administrative and Finance Committee and the Operations Committee heard a report on the audit process at 
their respective meetings on October 10th and October 13th.   



STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
1. Conduct a public hearing to consider acceptance of the First 5 Stanislaus 2021-2022 Audit Report

prepared by Hudson Henderson & Company, Inc.
2. Accept the First 5 Stanislaus 2021-2022 Audit Report.

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Hudson Henderson & Company Inc. charged $11,040 for auditing services and funding for the audit was included 
in the Commission’s Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget. 

COMMISSION ACTION:  
On motion of Commissioner   ; Seconded by Commissioner 
and approved by the following vote: 
Ayes: Commissioner(s):   
Noes: Commissioner(s):  
Excused or Absent Commissioner(s): 
Abstaining: Commissioner(s):   
1) Approved as recommended.
2) Denied.
3) Approved as amended.

Motion:  

Attest: ____________________________________________ 
   Stephanie Loomis – Staff Services Coordinator 



7473 N. INGRAM AVE., SUITE 102 FRESNO, CA 93711
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

P (559) 412-7576 F (559) 493-5325 WWW.HHCCPAS.COM

October 18, 2022

To the Board of Commissioners
Stanislaus County Children and Families Commission

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and major fund of the Stanislaus County Children 
and Families Commission (the Commission) for the year ended June 30, 2022. Professional standards require that we 
provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have 
communicated such information in our letter to you dated June 15, 2022. Professional standards also require that we 
communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting policies 
used by the Commission are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. As described in Note 13 to the financial 
statements, the Commission changed accounting policies related to leases by adopting Statement of Governmental 
Accounting Standards (GASB Statement) No. 87, Leases, in 2022. Accordingly, the cumulative effect of the accounting 
change as of the beginning of the year is reported in the Statement of Activities We noted no transactions entered into by 
the Commission during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions 
have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 

accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the 
possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. There were no sensitive estimates 
affecting the financial statements. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than 
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected 
all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by 

s taken as a 
whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, 
whether or not
are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.



Children and Families Commission of Stanislaus County 
October 18, 2022 
Page 2 of 2
 
Management Representations  

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation letter 
dated October 17, 2022. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants  

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, similar 
the 

Commission ay be expressed on those 
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant 
has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues  

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with 
management each year prior to retention as Commission he normal 
course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to 
Proportionate Share of , 
which is required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures 
consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information 

obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the RSI.  

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners and management of the 
Commission and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
HUDSON HENDERSON & COMPANY, INC. 

 
By:  Brian Henderson, CPA 

 



 

 

STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN  
AND FAMILIES COMMISSION 

 
(A Component Unit of the County of Stanislaus, California) 

 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
WITH 

 
 
 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2022 

 



   

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 Page 
 
 
 
Commission Membership .................................................................................................................................. i 
 
 
Independent Auditors  Report.......................................................................................................................... 1 
 
 

 ........................................................................................................... 4 
 
 
Basic Financial Statements: 
 
     Government-Wide Financial Statements: 
 

Statement of Net Position ................................................................................................................... 10 
Statement of Activities ........................................................................................................................ 11 

 
    Fund Financial Statements: 
 

Balance Sheet- Governmental Fund .................................................................................................... 12 
Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Balance Sheet to the 
  Statement of Net Position ................................................................................................................. 13 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
  Fund Balance- Governmental Fund ................................................................................................... 14 
Reconciliation of the Changes in Fund Balance to the 
  Statement of Activities ...................................................................................................................... 15 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance- 
  Budget to Actual (GAAP)- General Fund ............................................................................................ 16 

 
     Notes to Financial Statements ...................................................................................................................... 17 
 
Required Supplementary Information: 
 

 
  Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability ....................................................................................... 31 

 .............................................................................................. 32 
 
Other Reports: 
 
    
     Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 
     Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
     Government Auditing Standards ................................................................................................................... 33 
 
   Independent Auditors pliance ...................................................................................... 35 
 
 



   

i 

STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION 
COMMISSION MEMBERSHIP 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 
 
 

 
 



7473 N. INGRAM AVE., SUITE 102 FRESNO, CA 93711
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

P (559) 412-7576 F (559) 493-5325 WWW.HHCCPAS.COM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
  Stanislaus County Children and Families Commission

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and major fund of the 
Stanislaus County Children and Families Commission (the Commission), a component unit of the County of 
Stanislaus, California (the County), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, the budgetary comparison statement 
for the general fund, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities and major fund of the Commission, as of June 30, 2022, and the 
respective changes in financial position, and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund thereof for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the Commission and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note 13 to the financial statements, in 2022, the Commission adopted new accounting guidance, 
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Commission
concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that 
may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.



   

2 

Auditors  Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors  report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable 
user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Commission . Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the  ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of 
time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we 
identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information  

Accoun
and analysis on pages 4-9
share of the net pension liability on page 31 s on page 32 be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the i
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information  

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information 
comprises the Commission Membership but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditors  report 
thereon. Our opinion on the basic financial statements does not cover the other information, and we do not express 
an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 

 
 
 



   

3 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and 
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, 
or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we 
conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it 
in our report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 17, 2022, on our 
 of its compliance with 

certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
th
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
compliance.  

 
HUDSON HENDERSON & COMPANY, INC.    

 
Fresno, California 
October 17, 2022 
 
 
 



           

4

STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

JUNE 30, 2022

This section of the Stanislaus County Children and Families Commission's (the Commission) annual financial report 
presents management's discussion and analysis of the Commission's financial performance for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2022. It is important to read this section in conjunction with the basic financial statements and notes in this 
audit. 

OVERVIEW OF THE ENTITY 

The Stanislaus County Children and Families Commission was established by the Stanislaus County Board of 
Supervisors on December 8, 1998, pursuant to Ordinance #687. The ordinance provides that the Commission shall 
operate as an independent County agency and be governed by a nine-member Board of Commissioners appointed 
by the Stanislaus County Board of Supervisors with independent strategic planning and budget authority. The 
Commission operates under the regulatory guidance of the California Health and Safety Code and was formed as a 
result of the passage of Proposition 10 by California voters in November of 1998. 

The mission of the Commission is to be a catalyst to help give children and families the best start. The Commission 
achieves its mission by focusing its efforts on family functioning, health, child development, and sustainable systems. 

The Commission consistently reaches tens of thousands of children, parents, and providers each year through their 
service contractors, the majority of which are nonprofit organizations in Stanislaus County. The Commission focuses 
on implementation of its five-year Strategic Plan which drives the work and investments of the organization.  
Strategies of the Commission revolve around its role as a community capacity builder, systems builder, 
convener/collaborator, policy advocate as well as a funder. The Commission prioritizes investments to build capacity, 
create more aligned and integrated systems, convene, and collaborate with partners, and advocate for policies that 
improve outcomes for children from prenatal through age five and their families.

Commission staff work to implement Strategic Plan strategies including engaging in multiple partnerships with 
organizations to fulfill goals and objectives of the Commission. Staff lead and implement a training and capacity 
building program to support their funded partners and other community organizations. Staff also prepare and 
monitor contracts for services, process contract invoices, and ensure compliance with Commission policies and 
procedures and State code.  Staff also engage in numerous other activities to advance strategies of the Strategic 
Plan. 

Fiscal Year 2021-2022 saw a prolongation of the COVID-19 pandemic as variants continued to affect the community 
and the provision of services to those served by the Commission and their partners. Commission staff transitioned 
back to working in the office, but meetings and trainings remained virtual. Partner organizations persisted in
adapting their service model as a result of the pandemic in innovative and engaging ways. Despite hopes to resume 
in-person services in Fiscal Year 2021-2022, many remained impacted by COVID restrictions. In response, partner 
organizations developed a hybrid approach to services with some being offered in-person and others remaining 
virtual as needed. Commission staff were not able to implement all of the projects planned for the fiscal year due to 
limited capacity from staff vacancies at both the Commission and partner organizations and the persistence of the 
pandemic.



STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

JUNE 30, 2022
 

5 

During Fiscal Year 2021-2022, Commission staff developed The Family Network, a subsection of their website. The 
Family Network includes an online resource directory, a community calendar, healthy recipes, articles and videos for 
parents and caregivers on numerous topics, and more. The Family Network is designed to provide families with a 
variety of tools and resources in one convenient location accessible anywhere they have the internet. In addition, as 

gned and integrated systems, the 
Commission invested over $97,000 in training and materials for FRCs to support their implementation and continued 
operation of parenting education programs such as Abriendo Puertas, Nurturing Parenting, and Parent Cafés.  These 
programs give families the skills and knowledge they need to foster the development of their children and strengthen 
their relationships within the community. 
 
The Commission also: facilitated the local home visiting coordination pilot project funded by First 5 California; 
increased the Early Care and Education (ECE) trainings provided in partnership with the Stanislaus County Office of 
Education; launched PlanetBaby! which is a new prenatal to age one program in the FRCs; continued a close 
partnership with Yosemite Community College District for the IMPACT program;  began developing an online data 
portal and, created a Parent Education Community of Practice to support parent education program facilitators .  
 
FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The Fiscal Year 2021-2022 budget included a significantly increased revenue estimate of $4.93 million, which was an 
increase of 16% ($663,547) from the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 budget. The estimated revenue increase was based on 
projections used from the State of California reflecting the limited impact of COVID-19 on tobacco revenue during 
the prior fiscal year. Total service provider funding was budgeted at $2,168,400, which was a decrease of 5% 
($813,707) from the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 budget. This funding was allocated for 11 service provider contracts. Total 
budgeted expenses were $4.89 million which was an estimated 3.8% increase from the prior fiscal year.  
 
The significant revenue increase anticipated was realized and total expenses also continue to reflect the strategic 
cost structure changes implemented by the Commission to create a more balanced budget. 
 
The highlights of Fiscal Year 2021-2022 reflect increased financial strength through greater than budgeted revenue 
and less than budgeted expenditures. Key indicators comparing the results of Fiscal Year 2021-2022 and Fiscal Year 
2020-2021 include: 

 Total revenues decreased by nearly $833,217 (-14.72%) from Fiscal Year 2020-2021 actuals primarily due to 
receiving less Prop 10 funding and investment losses.   

 Total expenditures decreased by $253,003, (-6.74%) from Fiscal Year 2020-2021 actuals largely due to the 
decrease in contract expenditures. 

 Decreased expenditures combined with current year revenue resulted in an addition to fund balance of 
$1,497,077 at year-end. 

 
CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 

-wide financials) and 
2) Statement of Activities (change in net position). Both tables are summarized for the last three years. 
 



STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

JUNE 30, 2022
 

6 

 
Highlights of the above statement include: 
 

 There was an increase in total assets over the prior year due to the Commission's Prop 10 revenue and 
decrease in contract expenditures.  

 Current liabilities decreased compared to the prior year due to a decrease in accruals for contract costs due 
to other funds and accounts payable. 

 Long-term liabilities decreased due to the net pension liability recorded in connection with Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68 (which was implemented in 2015 - making 2022 the 
eighth year of implementation) and a decrease in compensated absences. 

 Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources of $165,652 and $286,754, respectively, 

proportionate share of the net pension liability. 
  



STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

JUNE 30, 2022
 

7 

 
Highlights of the above statement include: 
 

 Total expenses decreased $212,033 (-5.63%) from 2021 to 2022 as a result of reductions in contract 
expenditures.  

 Total revenues decreased $833,217 (-14.72%) from 2021 to 2022 as a result of a decrease in Prop 10 
revenue and current year investment loss.  

 The decrease in expenses combined with the total revenue resulted in a positive change in net position. 
 
OVERALL FINANCIAL POSITION 
 
Revenue is projected by the State of California to continue to decline for the Commission. The vast majority of 
Commission revenues are generated from tobacco taxes on tobacco products collected by the State of California 
and distributed to California's 58 counties based on the percentage of live births in each county. Tobacco tax revenue 
has decreased significantly since the passage of Prop 10. Revenue declined sharply in 2009-2010 when the federal 
government imposed higher taxes on tobacco. The increased cost of tobacco products encouraged users to quit 
smoking and/or purchase tobacco products in areas where taxes are not collected. Additional regulatory changes 
were implemented in 2017, including an increased smoking age of 21. These changes also included an additional $2 
per pack cigarette tax, though this revenue was not designated to fund County Commissions. The State projected 
there would be a significant decline in tax revenue as a result of the $2 per pack increase. To make the county 
Commissions whole for this revenue loss, the State committed to "backfill" revenue through Prop 56. The State 
continues working to fine-tune projections for Prop 56 revenue, as accurate projections have been challenging to 
produce. 
 
According to its financial policies, the Commission is to maintain a reserve that contains the equivalent of at least 
half of the Commission's budgeted revenues for the current fiscal year. Long-term projections of revenues and 
expenses allow program operations to be adjusted to ensure a sufficient reserve is maintained. The overall financial 
position of the Commission as reflected in its long-range model continues to support the opportunity for 

 
 
ANALYSIS OF THE CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION FUND 
 
The Board of Supervisors' ordinance establishing the Commission created a trust fund to record Commission 
revenues and expenditures. Because the Commission utilizes one fund for all its programs, this audit is somewhat 
unique as only one fund is examined from a "government-wide" and "fund" perspective.  



STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

JUNE 30, 2022
 

8 

Fund balances over the three-year period covered by this audit reflect policy changes by the Commission to decrease 
a reliance on deficit spending to come more closely to a balanced budget and to promote long-term organizational 
sustainability as a community resource.  Total expenditures have decreased for the Commission as reflected in 
organization expenditures over the past three years. Also, 2022 reflected a decrease in revenue from the State as 
well as lower than projected expenditures resulting in an increase to fund balance. The following table presents an 

 
 

 
Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 

amounts and actual amounts, and original and final budget amounts recorded for revenues and expenditures for 
Fiscal Year 2021-2022 as detailed in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance  
Budget to Actual (shown on page 16).  In Fiscal Year 2021-2022 the Commission received actual revenues of $5.0 
million compared to the budgeted amount of $5.1 million. In preparing the budget, the Commission used revenue 
projections provided by the State of California. Actual total revenues were $56,074 less than budgeted, largely as 
the result of the interest and investment revenues. Interest and investment revenues were $570,267 less than 
expected. Combined Prop 10/Prop 56 revenue came in $324,706 greater than projected by the State. Other 
revenues and other financing sources came in at $18,309 and $171,178, respectively, more than expected. 
 
In Fiscal Year 2021-2022, actual expenditures were approximately $1.6 million less than budgeted primarily due 
to a decrease in contract expenditures and lower than projected services & supplies spending as a result of 
operational impacts related to COVID- nal budget amounts 
compared with actual revenues and expenses is provided in the audited financial report, see page 1 6. 



STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

JUNE 30, 2022
 

9 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
Capital assets of $0 (net of accumulated depreciation) are for equipment purchased. See Note 3 for more 
information on capital assets. The Commission implemented GASB 87, Leases, in the current year. As part of the 
implementation, intangible capital assets of $125,531 
right-to-use building lease. See Note 4 for more information on right-to use capital assets and Note 13 on the Change 
in Accounting Principle. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Commission did not have any outstanding long-
term debt; however, the Commission does have long-term obligations for compensated absences, pensions and 
lease liability. See notes 5, 6, and 11 for details. 
 

 
 
The following are facts, decisions, and conditions that could potentially have a significant impact on Commission 
finances:  

 The flavored tobacco products ban on the November 2022 ballot which could significantly reduce revenue 
as soon as January 2024. 

 The unknown impact on tobacco revenue as a result of the COVID-19 Pandemic and its economic impact. 
 The long-term decrease in tobacco tax revenue as projected by the State. 
 The unknown impact of COVID- ies 

associated with the five-year Strategic Plan. 
 The long-range model approved by the Commission on May 24, 2022, shows the Commission maintaining 

fiscal strength through the next five fiscal years.  

 
 

 

interested. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 
information should be addressed to the Executive Director of the Stanislaus County Children and Families 
Commission, 930 15th Street, Modesto, CA  95354.



    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
 

10 

STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2022 
 
 

 
 
 



 

Th
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s 

ar
e 

an
 in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

11

ST
AN

IS
LA

U
S 

CO
U

N
TY

 C
H

IL
D

RE
N

 A
N

D
 F

AM
IL

IE
S 

CO
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
 

ST
AT

EM
EN

T 
O

F 
AC

TI
VI

TI
ES

 
FO

R 
TH

E 
YE

AR
 E

N
D

ED
 JU

N
E 

30
, 2

02
2 

  

 
 

 



    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
 

12 

STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
JUNE 30, 2022 

 
 

 
 

  



    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
 

13 

STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION 
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE 

SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2022 

 
 

 
 

  



    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
 

14 

STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  
GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
 
 

 
  



    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
 

15 

STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION 
RECONCILIATION OF THE CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

Th
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s 

ar
e 

an
 in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

16

ST
AN

IS
LA

U
S 

CO
U

N
TY

 C
H

IL
D

RE
N

 A
N

D
 F

AM
IL

IE
S 

CO
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
 

ST
AT

EM
EN

T 
O

F 
RE

VE
N

U
ES

, E
XP

EN
D

IT
U

RE
S,

 A
N

D
 C

H
AN

G
ES

 IN
 F

U
N

D
 B

AL
AN

CE
- B

U
D

G
ET

 T
O

 A
CT

U
A

L 
(G

AA
P)

 
G

O
VE

RN
M

EN
TA

L 
FU

N
D

 
FO

R 
TH

E 
YE

AR
 E

N
D

ED
 JU

N
E 

30
, 2

02
2 

  

 



 
STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 

NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Reporting Entity:  The Stanislaus County Children and Families Commission (the Commission) was established on 
December 8, 1998, pursuant to Health and Safety Code §130140. The Commission was also established in accordance 
with the provisions of the California Children and Families First Act of 1998 and by the County of Stanislaus Ordinance 
#687. The Commission is funded by surtaxes imposed on the sale of cigarettes and tobacco products. The nine 
members (as amended by Ordinance #787) of the Board of Commissioners are appointed by the County of Stanislaus 
(the County) Board of Supervisors. 
 
The Commission is responsible for the creation and implementation of a comprehensive, collaborative, and 
integrated system of information and services to enhance early childhood development. Services to enhance early 
childhood development include early childhood education and health programs. 
 
The Commission is a discretely presented component unit of the County under accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. As such, the results of its operations are also included in the County's 
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). The basic financial statements included in this report are intended 
to present the financial position and results of operations of only the Commission. They are not intended to present 
the financial position and the results of operations of the County taken as a whole. For additional information 
regarding the County, please refer to the audited basic financial statements available from the County. 
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation:  The basic financial statements of 
the Commission are prepared on the basis of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, 
Basic Financial Statements  Management Discussion and Analysis  for State and Local Governments, and related 
standards.  GASB Statement No. 34 established standards for external financial reporting for all state and local 

is section, a Statement of Net Position, 
a Statement of Activities, and, if applicable, a Statement of Cash Flows.  The financial statements consist of the 
following: 
 

 Government-Wide Financial Statements- 
 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about the Commission as a whole. 
The Statement of Net Position presents the financial condition of the governmental activities of the Commission at 
fiscal year-end.  The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues 

specifically associated with a service, program, or department and, therefore, clearly identifiable to a particular 
function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program 
and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
program. Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of the 
Commission, with certain limited exceptions.   
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon 
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 



 
STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
 

18 

NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued):   
  

 Fund Financial Statements- 
 

and the modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities 
are generally included on the Balance Sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
reflects the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) 
of current financial resources. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.  
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the Commission considers revenues to be 
available if they are collected within 9 months of the end of the current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under the accrual basis of accounting.  However, compensated absences are 
recorded only when payment is due. 
 
This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial 
statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, include a reconciliation with brief 
explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide financial statements and the fund 
financial statements for the governmental fund. 
 
The Commission reports the following major governmental fund: 
 
The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Commission and accounts for all revenues and expenditures 
of the Commission.   
 
Revenues  Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions:  Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each 
party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On 
a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become 
available. Available means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be 
collected soon enough thereafter, to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. 
 
Expenses/Expenditures:  On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred. 
The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources (expenditures) 
rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which the related fund 
liability is incurred. Principal and interest on long-term obligations, which have not matured, are recognized when 
paid in the governmental funds as expenditures. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are not 
recognized in the governmental funds but are recognized in the government-wide statements. 
 
Investments:  The Commission is restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest 
in time deposi

repurchase agreements.  
 
State statutes and the Commission olicy authorize the Commission to invest in U.S. Government 

No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment Pools, investments held 
by the County Treasurer are stated at fair value. The fair value of pooled investments is determined quarterly and is 
based on current market prices received from the securities custodian.  The balance available for withdrawal is based 
on the accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer. 
  



 
STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
 

19 

NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Due from Other Agencies:  The Commission utilizes the allowance method of accounting for and reporting 
uncollectible or doubtful accounts. At June 30, 2022, management considered all accounts to be fully collectible and, 
therefore, no allowance was recorded in the accompanying financial statements. 
 
Right-to-Use Asset: The Commission has recorded right-to-use lease assets as a result of implementing GASB 87. The 
right-to-use assets are initially measured at an amount equal to the initial measurement of the related lease liability 
plus any lease payments made prior to the lease term, less lease incentives, and plus ancillary charges necessary to 
place the lease into service. The right-to-use assets are intangible capital assets and are amortized on a straight-line 
basis over the life of the related lease.  
 
Lease Liability
by the Commission during the lease term. As lease payments are made, the Commission will reduce the liability 
(principal portion of payment) and recognize interest expense.  
 
Capital Assets:  Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported at historical 
cost or estimated historical cost. Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly extend the 
useful life of the asset are capitalized. The Commission does not possess any infrastructure. The costs of normal 
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are not 
capitalized but are expensed as incurred. 
 
When purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and capitalized in the 
government-wide Statement of Net Position. The valuation basis for capital assets is historical cost, or where 
historical cost is not available, estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are capitalized at estimated fair 
market value on the date donated.   
 
Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives: 
 
  Equipment:    3-10 years 
   
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources:  Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred 
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously 
Reported as Assets and Liabilities, the Commission recognizes deferred outflows and inflows of resources. 
 
In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows 
of resources. A deferred outflow of resources is defined as a consumption of net position by the Commission that is 
applicable to a future reporting period.  
 
In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows 
of resources. A deferred inflow of resources is defined as an acquisition of net position by the Commission that is 
applicable to a future reporting period.  
 
Use of Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 
 
Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations:  All current and long-term obligations are reported in the 
government-wide financial statements. Compensated absences that will be paid from governmental funds are 
reported as a liability in the governmental fund financial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment 
at year end. 
  



 
STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
 

20 

NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Compensated Absences:  Commission employees earn vacation and sick leave with pay every year. The amount of 
vacation and sick leave earned is based on the years of continuous service. 
 
After at least six months of Commission service, most regular employees, upon separation, are entitled to all unused 
vacation time accumulation. Most regular employees are entitled to a portion of accumulated sick leave after six 
years of service, depending on age, years of service, and bargaining unit. 
 
At the close of each fiscal year, the balance of this accumulated time at the last pay period is computed for each 
employee at the current salary range. In the financial statements, these amounts are referred to as "Compensated 
Absences." 
 
In the governmental fund financial statements, a liability for these amounts is reported only if they have matured, 

tation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement 
of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements. 
 
Pensions:  In government-wide financial statements, retirement plans (pensions) are required to be recognized and 
disclosed using the accrual basis of accounting (see Note 6 and the Required Supplementary Information (RSI) section 
immediately following the Notes to the Financial Statements), regardless of the amount recognized as pension 
expenditures on the governmental fund statements, which use the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
 
In general, the Commission recognizes a net pension liability, which represents the Commission's proportionate 
share of the County's proportionate share of the excess of the total pension liability over the fiduciary net position 
of the pension reflected in the actuarial report provided by Stanislaus County Employees' Retirement Association 
(StanCERA). The net pension liability is measured as of the County's prior fiscal year-end. Changes in the net pension 
liability are recorded, in the period incurred, as pension expense or as deferred inflows of resources or deferred 
outflows of resources depending on the nature of the change. The changes in net pension liability that are recorded 
as deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources (that arise from changes in actuarial assumptions 
or other inputs and differences between expected or actual experience) are amortized over the weighted average 
remaining service life of all participants in the respective pension plan and are recorded as a component of pension 
expense beginning with the period in which they are incurred. 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the County's 
pension plans with StanCERA and additions to/deductions from the plans' fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they were reported to StanCERA. 
 
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.  Projected earnings on pension 
investments are recognized as a component of pension expense.  Differences between projected and actual 
investment earnings are reported as deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources and amortized 
as a component of pension expense on a closed basis over a five-year period beginning with the period in which the 
difference occurred. Each subsequent year will incorporate an additional closed five-year period of recognition. 
  



 
STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
 

21 

NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Fund Equity:  In the fund financial statements, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting 
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, governmental funds report fund balance as nonspendable, restricted, 
committed, assigned or unassigned based primarily on the extent to which the Commission is bound to honor 
constraints on how specific amounts can be spent. 
 

 Nonspendable  Amounts that are not in spendable form (such as inventory) or are required to be 
maintained intact. 

 Restricted  Amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors, bondholders, 
and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation. 

 Committed  Amounts constrained to specific purposes by the Commission itself, using its highest level of 
decision-making authority (The Board of the Children and Families Commission). To be reported as 
committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Commission takes the same highest-
level action to remove or change the constraint. 

 Assigned  Amounts the Commission intends to use for a specific purpose.  Intent can be expressed by the 
Commission or by an official or body to which the Board of Commissioners delegates the authority. 

 Unassigned  Amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive amounts are reported only in the General 
Fund. 

 
The Commission establishes and modifies or rescinds fund balance commitments by passage of an ordinance or 
policy.  This is typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget.  A fund balance commitment is further 
indicated in the budget as a designation or commitment of the fund, such as approved contracts. Assigned fund 
balance is established by the Commission through adoption or amendment of the budget, or future year budget, 
plan as intended for a specific purpose. 
 

resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 

in excess of at least half of current year budgeted revenues. 
 
Net Position
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the fund equity section on the Statement of Net Position was combined 
to report total net position and present it in three broad components: net investment in capital assets, restricted, 
and unrestricted. Net position, net investment in capital assets includes capital assets, including right-to-use asset, 
net of accumulated depreciation, accumulated amortization, and outstanding principal balances of debt attributable 
to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is restricted when constraints are 
imposed by third parties or by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. All other net position is 

for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.   
 
Budgeting Procedures:  The Commission prepares and legally adopts a final budget on or before July 1st of each 
fiscal year.  After the budget is approved, the appropriations can be added to, subtracted from, or changed only by 
Commission resolution. All such changes must be within the revenues and reserves estimated as available in the 
final budget or within revised revenue estimates as approved by the Commission. 
 
An operating budget is adopted each fiscal year on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Additionally, 
encumbrance accounting is utilized to assure effective budgetary control.  Encumbrances outstanding at year-end 
represent the estimated amount of the expenditures ultimately to result if the unperformed contracts in process at 
year-end are completed or purchase commitments satisfied. Such year-end encumbrances are reported as 
reservations of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be 
honored during the subsequent year and included in the subsequent year's budget. Unencumbered appropriations 
lapse at year-end.  



 
STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
 

22 

NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Update:  During the year ending June 30, 2022, the Commission implemented 
the following standards: 
 
GASB Statement No. 87  Leases. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning 
after December 15, 2019. Subsequent to issuance, GASB Statement No. 95 postponed the requirements of this 
statement to reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021.  
 
GASB Statement No. 92  Omnibus 2020.  The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2020. Subsequent to issuance, GASB Statement No. 95 postponed the requirements of this 
statement to June 15, 2021.   
 
GASB Statement No. 97  Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans.  The requirements of this statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021.  
 
GASB Statement No. 98  The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. The requirements of this statement are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021.  
 
Released GASB Statements to be implemented in future financial statements are as follows: 
 
GASB Statement No. 91  Conduit Debt Obligations.  The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting 
periods beginning after December 15, 2020. Subsequent to issuance, GASB Statement No. 95 postponed the 
requirements of this statement to reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021.   
 
GASB Statement No. 93  Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates.  The requirements of this statement are effective 
for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. Subsequent to issuance, GASB Statement No. 95 postponed the 
certain requirements of this statement to reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022.   
 
GASB Statement No. 94  Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements.  The 
requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022.  
 
GASB Statement No. 96  Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements.  The requirements of this 
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022. 
 
GASB Statement No. 99  Omnibus 2022. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2022. 
 
GASB Statement No. 100  Accounting Changes and Error Corrections. The requirements of this statement are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2023.  
 
GASB Statement No. 101  Compensated Absences. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting 
periods beginning after December 15, 2023.  
 
Subsequent Events:  In compliance with accounting standards, management has evaluated events that have 
occurred after year-end to determine if these events are required to be disclosed in the financial statements.  
Management has determined that no events require disclosure in accordance with accounting standards.  These 
subsequent events have been evaluated through October 17, 2022, which is the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. 
  



 
STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
 

23 

NOTE 2  CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
The Commission's cash is invested in the County cash and investment pool. The County cash and investment pool is 
invested in accordance with California State Government Code Section 53600. In addition, the cash and investment 
pool is further restricted to those investments deemed acceptable per the investment policy guidelines prepared by 
the County Treasurer and approved by the Board of Supervisors of the County. 
 
For further information regarding the cash and investment pool, the audit report of the County may be obtained by 
writing the County of Stanislaus, 1010 10th Street, Suite 5100, Modesto, CA 85354. 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2022, consist of the following: 

 

 
 
NOTE 3  CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital assets activity related to governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows: 
 

 
Depreciation expense charged to the governmental unit for the year ended June 30, 2022, was $0.  
 
 
NOTE 4  RIGHT-TO-USE ASSET 
 
The Commission has recorded one right-to-use leased asset. The asset is a right-to-use asset for leased building. The 
related lease is discussed in Note 11. The right-to-use asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of 
the related lease.  
  



 
STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
 

24 

NOTE 4  RIGHT-TO-USE ASSET (continued) 
 
Right-to-use asset activity related to governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:  
 

 
Amortization expense charged to governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2022 was $34,236. 
 
 
NOTE 5  COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 
Compensated absences activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows: 
 

 
 
NOTE 6  PENSIONS  
 
Plan Description: The Commission, as a component unit of the County, is a participant in the Stanislaus County 
Employees Retirement Association (StanCERA), a retirement system organized under the 1937 Retirement Act. 
StanCERA is a cost-sharing multiple employer Public Employee Retirement System (PERS). StanCERA provides 
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits. Health and welfare 
insurance for retirees and their dependents is available, however, it is administered independently of StanCERA. The 
plan is administered by StanCERA. An actuarial valuation is performed for the system annually as a whole and the 
contribution rate is determined for each participating entity. The participating entities are the County, City of Ceres, 

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information for StanCERA. The ACFR may be obtained by writing to Stanislaus County Employees Retirement 
Association, P.O. Box 3150, Modesto, CA 95353-3150 or by calling (209) 525-6393. 
 
The StanCERA ACFR is prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in 
the period in which the contributions are due. Employer contributions are recognized when due and a formal 
commitment to provide the contributions has been made. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. 
 
Plan investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair 
value. All other securities are valued at the last reported market price at current exchange rates. 
  



 
STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
 

25 

NOTE 6  PENSIONS (continued) 
 

 
Benefits Provided:  Members terminating employment before accruing ten years for Tier 3 of retirement service 
credit forfeit the right to receive retirement benefits unless they establish reciprocity with another public agency 
within the prescribed time period. Non-vested members who terminate service are entitled to withdraw their 
accumulated contributions plus accrued interest. Members who terminate after earning five or ten years of 
retirement service credit may leave their contributions on deposit and elect to take a deferred retirement. Difference 
between expected or actual experience for vested and non-vested benefits may result in an increase or decrease to 
pension expense and net pension liability. 
 
For members with Tier 1, Tier 4, or Tier 5 benefits, final average salary is the average monthly salary based on the 
highest twelve consecutive months of earnings. For members with Tier 2, Tier 3, or Tier 6 benefits, final average 
salary is the average monthly salary based on the highest thirty-six consecutive months of earnings. 
 
The retirement benefit for Tier 1, Tier 2, Tier 4, Tier 5, and Tier 6 members includes a postretirement cost-of-living 
adjustment (COLA) based upon the Consumer Price Index. COLA increases/decreases are limited to a maximum of 
3% annually. Total COLA decrease(s) cannot exceed the cumulative amount of previous COLA increase(s). Tier 1, Tier 
2, Tier 4, Tier 5, and Tier 6 provide death and disability benefits. 
 
Those members participating in Tier 1, Tier 2, Tier 4, Tier 5, and Tier 6 are required by statute to contribute to the 

r 6 is a flat rate 
based on the actuarially calculated future benefit. The Council is required by statute to contribute the remaining 
amounts necessary to finance the estimated benefits accrued to its members. 
  



 
STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
 

26 

NOTE 6  PENSIONS (continued) 
 
Benefits Provided (continued):   
 
Member and employer contribution rates for each plan are as follows: 
 

 
The Commission for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, was equal to the required 
contributions. The required contributions for the last three fiscal years are noted in the below chart. The Commission 
does not contribute towards post-employment benefits other than retirement. 
 

 
 

7 establishes the basic obligations for employer and member 
contributions and benefits to and of the retirement system. The actual employer and member contribution rates in 
effect each year are based on recommendations made by an independent actuary and adopted by the StanCERA 
Board of Retirement. 
 
StanCERA provides a death benefit of $5,000 paid to the beneficiary or estate if a member dies after retirement, 

 
 
Ad-hoc benefits are non-vested benefits determined by the Board of Retirement. Approved changes to the excess 
earnings policy by the Board of Retirement on June 30, 2014, placed restrictions on offering adhoc benefits, 
specifically that the system must be 100% actuarially funded prior to the Board of Retirement offering any ad-hoc 
benefits. StanCERA is 86.5% actuarially funded as of June 30, 2021. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 
to Pensions: At June 30, 2022, the Commission reported a liability of $501,265 for its proportionate share of the 

net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, 
and the liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation date of June 30, 
2020, updated to June 30, 2021. The Commission on a projection 
of the Commission -term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of 
all Pension Plan participants, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the Commission ate share of the 

1313%, compared to 0.1343% at June 30, 2020, a decrease of 0.003%. 



 
STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
 

27 

NOTE 6  PENSIONS (continued) 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 
to Pensions (continued): 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Commission recognized a pension benefit of $238,260. Pension expense 
(benefit) represents the change in the net pension liability during the measurement period, adjusted for actual 
contributions and the deferred recognition of changes in investment gain/loss, actuarial gain/loss, actuarial 
assumptions, or method and plan benefits. At June 30, 2022, the Commission reported deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

 
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources above represent the unamortized portion of 
changes to net pension liability to be recognized in future periods in a systematic and rational manner. 
 

 contributions of $117,318 made subsequent to the measurement date are reported as deferred 
outflows of resources for fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. 
 
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

 
Actuarial Assumptions: The total pension liability in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation, updated to June 30, 2021, 
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions. Total pension liability represents the portion of the 
actuarial present value of projected benefit payments attributable to past periods of service for current and inactive 
employees. 
 
 Inflation     2.50% 
 Amortization growth rate    3.00% 
 Salary increases     2.75% plus merit component 
 COLA increases     2.40% for those eligible 
 Investment rate of return expense  6.75%, net of investment expenses 
 Post-retirement mortality    Fully generational mortality improvement 

projection from base year 2009 using scale MP-2018 
  



 
STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
 

28 

NOTE 6  PENSIONS (continued) 
 
Actuarial Assumptions (continued): 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation, updated to the  June, 2021 valuation, were 
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2015  June 30, 2018. 
 

Long-Term

Asset Class
Expected Real
Rate of Return

Target 
Allocation

Domestic Equities
U.S. Large Cap 6.20% 16.00%
U.S. Small  Cap 6.30% 3.50%

International Equities
International Development 4.83% 18.00%
Emerging Market Equity 2.07% 5.00%

U.S. Fixed Income
Core Fixed Income 3.20% 7.00%
U.S. Treasury 2.60% 5.00%
Short-term Gov/Credit 2.90% 8.00%

Real Estate
Core 5.60% 6.00%
Value-add 7.77% 5.00%

Risk Parity 5.10% 13.00%
Private Equity 9.90% 6.00%
Private Credit 7.80% 4.50%
Infrastructure 7.10% 2.00%
Cash 2.30% 1.00%  

 
Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current 
contribution rate and that contributions from the employers will be made at contractually required rates, actuarially 

o be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate:  The following 

calculated using the discount rate of 6.75
proportionate share of the net pension liability if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percent lower 
(5.75%) or 1 percent higher (7.75%) than the current rate, as follows:   
 

1% Discount 1%
Decrease

5.75%
Rate

6.75%
Increase

7.75%

1,016,662$                 501,265$                     80,737$                        
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension p available 
in the separately issued StanCERA ACFR. 
 
  



 
STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
 

29 

NOTE 7  FUND BALANCES 
 
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, fund balances are reserved for amounts that are not available for 
appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for a specific future use.  Commitments of fund balance 
represent uses of funds for a specific purpose that require the Board of Commissioners action for initiation, 
modification, and removal. Assignment of fund balance represents managements plans that are subject to change. 
Fund balances have been committed for the following purposes: 
 

 Budget Reserve Account represents an amount the Commission has established, as a contingency fund, of 
which no funds will be spent without prior Commission approval. 
 

 Contracts Approved and Executed represents amounts that the Commission has authorized, entered into 
an agreement, and has been executed. 

 
 
NOTE 8  RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction of assets, errors and 
omissions, injuries to employees, employee's health, and natural disasters. The Commission manages these various 
risks of loss by purchasing commercial insurance coverage. Their policy includes coverage for bodily injury, property 
damage, personal injury, automobile liability, directors' and officers' liability, public officials' errors and omissions, 
and non-owned and hired autos. In addition, the Commission maintains a workers' compensation insurance policy 
and a health benefits insurance package for its employees. Settlements have not exceeded covered amounts for the 
past three years. 
 
Risk management expenditures during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 are as follows: 
 

 
 
NOTE 9  EVALUATION EXPENDITURES 
 
The Commission spent $7,164 on program evaluation during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 
 
 
NOTE 10  ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 
 
The Commission received the majority of its funding from taxes imposed by the California Tax and Revenue Code in 
correlation with Proposition 10 and Proposition 56.  These codes impose additional taxes on the sale of cigarettes 
and tobacco products.  The total amount of funding from the additional taxes was $5,032,129, or 104.22%, of the 
total revenue for the year ended June 30, 2022.  The Commission is thus subject to possible risk of reductions in 
services and/or closure due to potential future changes of the California Tax and Revenue Code. 
 
  



 
STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
 

30 

NOTE 11  LEASE LIABILITY 
 
The Commission entered into a building lease agreement to house the operations of the Commission at 930 15th 
Street, Modesto, CA. The lease commenced on December 1, 2014, and terminated on February 28, 2021. The lease 
had an option to renew at the end of the first lease period. The lease was renewed on March 1, 2021 and will terminate 
on February 28, 2026. The Commission has the option to extend the terms of the lease for a period of two years from 
the expiration of the initial term. If the option to extend is exercised, the monthly payment will be $2,987 from March 
1, 2026 through February 29, 2028. Lease expense for the year ended  June 30, 2022 was $33,503. Interest expense 
for the year ending June 30, 2022 was $289. Lease liability was recognized as part of the implementation of GASB 87, 
Leases. Future minimum lease and interest payments for the lease liability are as follow: 
 

 
 

NOTE 12  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Coronavirus Pandemic:  Management has determined the events regarding the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) 
require disclosure in accordance with accounting standards. On March 4, 2020 Governor Newsom issued an 
emergency proclamation declaring a state of emergency in California due to COVID-19. The COVID-19 outbreak is 
ongoing, and the ultimate geographic spread of the virus, the duration and severity of the outbreak and the 
economic and other actions that may be taken by government authorities to contain the outbreak or treat its impact 
are uncertain. A vaccination has been created and is being administered throughout the State, including the 

The ultimate impact of COVID-19 on the operations and finances of the Commission 
remains unknown. 
 
 
NOTE 13  CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 
 
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, establishes specific criteria used to account for contracts that meets the definition 
of a lease. Implementation of GASB Statement No. 87 requires lessee to recognize a lease liability and an intangible 
right-to-use asset, and lessor to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. The Statement is to 

 
 
As of June 30, 2022, the Commission had one lease that meets the criteria of GASB Statement No. 87 and the 
Commission has implemented the Statement accordingly. The Statement is applied retroactively and the financial 
statements are restated for all prior periods presented. As of June 30, 2022, the Commission recognized a right-to-
use asset (net of accumulated amortization) of $125,531 and lease liability of $126,495 for the lease in which the 
Commission is a lessee.  
 
 
NOTE 14  PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 
 
A prior period adjustment of ($231) was recorded in the Government-Wide financial statements to restate beginning 
net position as a result of implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The adjustment reduced net position 
by the lease liability recognized in the prior year and offset by a right-to-use asset.  
  



 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN  
AND FAMILIES COMMISSION 

 
(A Component Unit of the County of Stanislaus, California) 

 
 
 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



 31

ST
AN

IS
LA

U
S 

CO
U

N
TY

 C
H

IL
D

RE
N

 A
N

D
 F

AM
IL

IE
S 

CO
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
  

 
N

ET
 P

EN
SI

O
N

 L
IA

BI
LI

TY
 

JU
N

E 
30

, 2
02

2 
LA

ST
 1

0 
YE

AR
S*

 
  

 
 

* 
Th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
sc

he
du

le
s 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 s

ho
w

 
 

 



 32

ST
AN

IS
LA

U
S 

CO
U

N
TY

 C
H

IL
D

RE
N

 A
N

D
 F

AM
IL

IE
S 

CO
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
 

CO
N

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

S 
FO

R 
TH

E 
YE

AR
 E

N
D

ED
 JU

N
E 

30
, 2

02
2 

LA
ST

 1
0 

YE
AR

S*
 

  

 
 

be
co

m
es

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

   



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STANISLAUS COUNTY CHILDREN  
AND FAMILIES COMMISSION 

 
(A Component Unit of the County of Stanislaus, California) 

 
 
 
 

OTHER REPORTS 



7473 N. INGRAM AVE., SUITE 102 FRESNO, CA 93711
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

P (559) 412-7576 F (559) 493-5325 WWW.HHCCPAS.COM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Commissioners
  Stanislaus County Children and Families Commission 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities and major fund of the Stanislaus 
County Children and Families Commission (the Commission), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, the 
budgetary comparison statement for the general fund, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
October 17, 2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Commission
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Commission

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, suc
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

m 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial 
statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance 
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.



34 

Purpose of This Report  

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the Commission
for any other purpose. 

 

HUDSON HENDERSON & COMPANY, INC. 

      
Fresno, California 
October 17, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 



7473 N. INGRAM AVE., SUITE 102 FRESNO, CA 93711
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

P (559) 412-7576 F (559) 493-5325 WWW.HHCCPAS.COM

To the Board of Commissioners
  Stanislaus County Children and Families Commission

Compliance

We have audited the Stanislaus County Children and Families Commission (the Commission) compliance with the 
requirements specified in the State of Standards and Procedures for Audits of Local Entities Administering 
the California Children and Families Act to 
statutory requirements identified below for the year ended June 30, 2022.

In our opinion, the Commission complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on the California Children and Families Program for the year ended 
June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS), the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General Standards and Procedures for Audits of
Local Entities Administering the California Children and Families Act, issued by the State Office. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of 
Compliance section of ourreport.

We are required to be independent of the Commission and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the

compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the California Children and 
Families Program.



36 

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the material noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the 

 compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing 
Standards, and the State of 
California Children and Families Act will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the 

Families Program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Standards and Procedures 
for Audits of Local Entities Administering the California Children and Families Act, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit; 

 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, 

and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances; 

 iance relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on 

Standards and Procedures 
for Audits of Local Entities Administering the California Children and Families Act, but not for the purpose 

Accordingly, we express no such opinion; and 

 Select and test transa
and regulations applicable to the following items: 

 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over 
compliance that we identify during the audit. 

  



37 

Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, noncompliance on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material noncompliance with a compliance requirement will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention from those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditors  
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
Standards and Procedures 

for Audits of Local Entities Administering the California Children and Families Act. Accordingly, this report is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

 

HUDSON HENDERSON & COMPANY, INC. 

      
Fresno, California 
October 17, 2022 
 
 
 



COMMITTEE ROUTING 
 

Administrative/Finance  
Operations  
Executive   

 
 

 
ACTION AGENDA SUMMARY 

 

AGENDA DATE: October 25, 2022    COMMISSION AGENDA #: 8.B. (PUBLIC HEARING)  
 

SUBJECT:  
Public Hearing on the 2021-2022 Local Annual Report and Authorization for Staff to Submit the 2021-2022 Local 
Annual Report to First 5 California 
 

BACKGROUND: 
Following its passage by voters in 1998, the provisions of Proposition 10 were codified into California State Law as 
Sections 130100 – 130155 of the California Health and Safety Code. Section 130150 of the California Health and 
Safety Code requires a local Children and Families Commission to conduct a public hearing on its Annual Report and 
to submit the Annual Report to the State by November 1st of each year. The Annual Report is a written report on 
the progress towards and achievement of the goals and objectives of the Proposition. 
 
No substantive changes were made by First 5 California to the reporting categories of the Annual Report for Fiscal 
Year 2021-2022, although there were minor changes. First 5 California added the Kits for New Parents program 
model under the Family Literacy and Books Programs service category in Improved Family Functioning allowing 
county commissions to easily report the number of families receiving Kits. An electronic copy of the report can be 
found on the First 5 Stanislaus website under “Reports by Year” http://first5stan.org/all_reports.shtm. 
 
Local First 5 organizations are required to submit their Local Annual Report data through a standardized online 
portal to First 5 California. The State uses the data from these 58 local reports to compile a statewide report that 
must be submitted to the Legislature by January 15th of each year. 
 
The Administrative and Finance Committee and the Operations Committee heard a report on the Local Annual 
Report process at their respective meetings on October 10th and October 13th. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
1. Conduct a public hearing on the 2021-2022 Local Annual Report. 
2. Accept the 2021-2022 Local Annual Report and authorize staff to submit the report to First 5 California. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact associated with the approval of this agenda item. 
 

COMMISSION ACTION:       
 

On motion of Commissioner     ; Seconded by Commissioner        
and approved by the following vote: 
Ayes: Commissioner(s):             
Noes: Commissioner(s):             
Excused or Absent Commissioner(s):           
Abstaining: Commissioner(s):             
1)   Approved as recommended. 
2)   Denied. 
3)   Approved as amended.  
 
Motion: ______________________ 
 

http://first5stan.org/all_reports.shtm


Attest: 
  Stephanie Loomis – Staff Services Coordinator 



Local Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2021-2022



Annual Report AR-1
Stanislaus Revenue and Expenditure Summary

July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022

Revenue Detail
Category Amount

Tobacco Tax Funds $3,768,343

First 5 IMPACT 2020 Funds $3,727

Small Population County Augmentation Funds $0

DLL Pilot Funds $0

Other First 5 California Funds $1,318,312

Other First 5 California Funds Description
$1,263,786.20 P56 Back�ll, $3,019.28 SMIF, $51502.20 First 5 CA Home Visiting Grant

Other Public Funds $0

Other Public Funds Description

Donations $0

Revenue From Interest Earned ($490,267)

Grants $220,000

Grants Description
Sunlight Giving Grants

Other Funds $8,383

Other Funds
Utility Settlement of Dispute

Total Revenue $4,828,498

Page 1



Improved Family Functioning
Service Grantee Program(s) Children Caregivers Providers Amount

General Family Support CBO/Non-Pro�t Core Operating Support 4086 4661 2624 $1,662,009

General Family Support County O�ce of
Education/School District

Core Operating Support 2760 2406 596 $498,398

Family Literacy and Book
Programs

First 5 County Commission Kit for New Parents 0 710 0 $0

Total $2,160,407

Improved Child Development
Service Grantee Program(s) Children Caregivers Providers Amount

Quality Early Learning
Supports

First 5 County Commission Not Applicable 
()

0 0 283 $2,314

Total $2,314

Page 2



Improved Child Health
No data entered for this section as of 10/21/2022 9:10:49 AM.

Improved Systems Of Care
Service Grantee Program(s) Amount

Systems Building First 5 County Commission Family Resiliency $51,506

Systems Building First 5 County Commission Not Applicable 
()

$402,124

Systems Building CBO/Non-Pro�t Not Applicable 
(Capacity Building for County Cradle
to Career)

$16,415

Systems Building Other Private/For Pro�t Health Systems $1,800

Systems Building Other Private/For Pro�t Family Resiliency $61,337

Systems Building Family Resource Center Family Resiliency $0

Emergency and Disaster Relief CBO/Non-Pro�t Direct Material Support $120,000

Total $653,182

Page 3



Expenditure Details
Category Amount

Program Expenditures $2,815,903

Administrative Expenditures $508,352

Evaluation Expenditures $7,164

Total Expenditures $3,331,419

Excess (De�ciency) Of Revenues Over (Under) Expenses $1,497,079

Other Financing Details
Category Amount

Sale(s) of Capital Assets ($171,178)

Other 
Credit Capitol Outlay $-171,178;/Debit for Lease and Other Financing Proceeds 171,178

$171,178

Total Other Financing Sources $0

Page 4



Net Change in Fund Balance
Category Amount

Fund Balance - Beginning $10,061,750

Fund Balance - Ending $11,558,829

Net Change In Fund Balance $1,497,079

Fiscal Year Fund Balance
Category Amount

Nonspendable $0

Restricted $0

Committed $2,716,650

Assigned $8,842,179

Unassigned $0

Total Fund Balance $11,558,829

Page 5



Expenditure Note
Fiscal year 2021-2022 is the �rst year First 5 Stanislaus implemented GASB 87 in accordance with accounting standards. This standard

affected the reporting of rent and leases as a tangible asset, however the State reporting system did not include an update to the reporting
system in order to effectively re�ect this standard. To mitigate this issue a credit was applied for the intangible asset was applied to the

capital outlay and a debit was applied for the Other �nancing sources in the system. In net the change in fund balance, beginning fund balance
and ending fund balance matches. (It should be noted there are immaterial differences in some of the totals due to rounding, but the net result

matches to the Financial Audit Report.)

Page 6



Annual Report AR-2
Stanislaus Demographic Worksheet

July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022

Population Served
Category Number

Children Less than 3 Years Old 2,939

Children from 3rd to 6th Birthday 3,828

Children – Ages Unknown (birth to 6th Birthday) 79

Providers 283

Primary Caregivers 10,997

Total Population Served 18,126

Page 7



Primary Languages Spoken in the Home

Category
Number of

Children Number of Primary Caregivers

English 4,171 6,176

Spanish 2,393 3,845

Cantonese 0 1

Mandarin 0 10

Korean 0 10

Unknown 58 79

Other - Specify with text box 
Hmong, Farsi, etc.

224 876

Totals 6,846 10,997

Page 8



Race/Ethnicity of Population Served

Category
Number of

Children Number of Primary Caregivers

Alaska Native/American Indian 22 73

Asian 245 925

Black/African-American 327 354

Hispanic/Latino 4,497 6,502

Native Hawaiian or Other Paci�c Islander 25 107

White 1,188 1,703

Two or more races 158 187

Other – Specify with text box 
Hmong, Farsi, etc.

188 232

Unknown 196 914

Totals 6,846 10,997

Page 9



Duplication Assessment
Category Data

Degree of Duplication 10%

Con�dence in Data Not sure

Additional Details (Optional)

Page 10



Annual Report AR-3
Stanislaus County Evaluation Summary and Highlights

July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022

County Evaluation Summary

Evaluation Activities Completed, Findings, and Policy Impact
First 5 Stanislaus views evaluation as both a process and a tool. The process of evaluation is �uid and occurs throughout the �scal year,
encompassing multiple methods and activities. As a tool, the evaluation informs stakeholders and assists in future funding or scope of work
revisions. The primary focus of the evaluation is promoting a learning environment. Learning occurs when the following types of evaluation
information are shared: effective and ineffective practices; impacts on children, families, and communities; costs and bene�ts of programs;
and the contributions of programs towards achieving population results expressed in the First 5 Stanislaus Strategic Plan. The Strategic Plan
is the foundation of any given �scal year's evaluation cycle, as it communicates First 5 Stanislaus’ goals, objectives, and strategies. The
evaluation activities begin as each funded program addresses the Strategic Plan through its activities and planned outcomes, which are
identi�ed in the Scope of Work (SOW) that is developed at the start of the �scal year. The SOW becomes the basis for each program's
SCOARRS (Stanislaus County Outcomes and Results Reporting Scorecard), which is designed to document services performed, resources
used, data collected, and outcomes expected. Both documents are constructed jointly between First 5 Stanislaus staff and program staff, and
each draws on the unique capacity of the programs to contribute to First 5’s goals and objectives. Both documents serve as blueprints that
enable programs and First 5 to mutually understand how resources will turn into results. Quantitative and qualitative data are collected
through each individual program's SCOARRS, which provides a structured framework for tracking and reporting data and outcomes. SCOARRS
are submitted quarterly by all programs and contribute to the effective monitoring of each program on a quarterly basis. SCOARRS data also
supply programs with information to learn what is working well and what improvements can be made throughout the �scal year and allows
programs to explain and/or revise practices. First 5 Stanislaus and programs continuously evaluate program services throughout the annual
evaluation cycle, using both qualitative and quantitative methods of collecting, analyzing, and reporting data. A variety of tools provide the
programs and First 5 with program data, including the following: pre/post tests, customer/employee satisfaction surveys, observations, intake
forms, and screenings. Programs capture output and outcome data through SCOARRS and demographic information through a Demographic
Data Collection Tool. First 5 staff then reviews all the information and reports submitted, along with budgets, invoices, and site visit
summaries to evaluate individual program effectiveness, as well as overall aggregate progress toward First 5 Stanislaus goals and objectives.
Efforts to evaluate leveraging and collaboration efforts continue through data collected by individual programs’ annual reports. During the
2021-2022 �scal year First 5 staff evaluated programs funded in the 2020-2021 �scal year and the result were published in the 2020-2021
Annual Program Evaluation report which is available on First 5 Stanislaus website (http://�rst5stan.org/all_reports.shtm). The evaluation
results are one of multiple tools that was used by First 5 to make program funding decisions for the 2022-2023 �scal year. Evaluation data
provides First 5 Stanislaus with information that can be used to make decisions regarding short and long-term budgeting, program
recommendations, and revising and updating its Strategic Plan. Evaluation information continues to in�uence decisions regarding the
prioritization of services and the allocation of diminishing resources.

Page 11



County Highlights

County Highlight
It is the mission of First 5 Stanislaus to be a catalyst to help give children and families the best start. This commitment remained ever
important when met with the lingering impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic during this past year. First 5 Stanislaus partner organizations reach
thousands of the most vulnerable members of our community each year. In Fiscal Year 2021-2022, First 5 Stanislaus continued to work with
its funded partners to ensure services be delivered to the community in safe ways that allowed children and families to remain connected to
their support systems and basic needs when they were most needed. Partners continued to offer services by phone, virtually, drive-through
formats and in-person when safe. Through its partnership with a network of 12 local Family Resource Centers, First 5 Stanislaus invested
$120,000 of emergency funding into the local community for basic human needs and support in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Over
4,100 individuals impacted by the pandemic received assistance such as housing/utility payment relief, grocery assistance, cleaning supplies,
or basic needs. Even in the face of persisting COVID-19 pandemic restrictions and resulting challenges, First 5 Stanislaus funded partners
were able make a signi�cant impact with the children and families they served. The parents of 6,846 children received family support services
through countywide Family Resource Centers or other programs. The caregivers of 1,051 children attended parenting classes and increased
their parenting skills and knowledge. 77% of families of children 0-5 (1,155/1,507) increased the time spent reading with their children at home
after receiving literacy services. 1,507 children 0-5 who received literacy services received a book to build upon the skills they and their
families learned.

Page 12


	01_Commission Meeting Notice 10.25.22
	DISCUSSION ITEMS: These items will be individually discussed with opportunity for public comment.
	PUBLIC HEARINGS: These items may be required by legislation or code and are opportunities to gather public feedback.

	02_Commission Meeting Cover 10.25.22
	03_Commission Meeting Agenda 10.25.22
	04_Commission Meeting Minutes 8.23.22
	05_Commission Meeting Minutes 9.15.22 Closed Special Meeting
	06. Administrative Committee Minutes 10.10.22
	7_4th Qtr Finanical Report FY 2122
	8_Result Area Report as of June 30, 2022 FY 2122
	09. Operations Committee Minutes 10.13.22
	10 7.A. Approval to Appoint an Executive Director to First 5 Stanislaus
	COMMITTEE ROUTING
	ACTION AGENDA SUMMARY
	Stephanie Loomis – Interim Executive Director


	11_7A. 2022 Dept Head Benefits
	14 8.A. Public Hearing to Consider the Acceptance of the First 5 Stanislaus 2021-2022 Audit Report
	COMMITTEE ROUTING
	ACTION AGENDA SUMMARY
	Stephanie Loomis – Interim Executive Director


	15_8A. 2021-2022 First 5 Stanislaus Audit Report
	16 8.B. Public Hearing on the 2021-2022 Local Annual Report and Authorization for Staff to Submit the 2020-2021 Local Annual Report for First 5 California
	COMMITTEE ROUTING
	ACTION AGENDA SUMMARY
	Stephanie Loomis – Interim Executive Director


	17_8.B Local Annual Report 2021-2022
	10 7.A. Approval to Appoint an Executive Director to First 5 Stanislaus.pdf
	COMMITTEE ROUTING
	ACTION AGENDA SUMMARY
	Stephanie Loomis – Interim Executive Director





